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S.R. DINODIA & Co. LLp

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

K-39 Connaught Place, New Delhi-110001 INDIA
Ph. : +91-(0)11-4370 3300 Fax: +91-(0)11-4151 3665

Independent Auditor's Report

To The Members of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qpinion

W‘:: have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”),

In our opihion and 16 the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {*Ind AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audlting
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audif of the Financial Stalements section of
our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, The Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report is expected to be made available 1o us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read Board's Report including Annexures o Board's Repor, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles gene
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounling rece
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accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate -
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going congern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors gither intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaterent when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control, '

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
cantrols,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required o draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our audilor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and wher igable,
related safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. PAs required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order™), Issued py t‘he Central
Government of Indla in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure
A" a statement on the mallers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

wi.

Vil

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

[n our opinion, praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thase books. '

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Ruie 7 of the Companies (Accaunts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as z director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B,

With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us: .

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
posilion.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. :

d)

. The Management has represented that, to the best of ils knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 42 to the accounts, no funds {which are material either Individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either frorm barrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company lo or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 42 to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entlty (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recarded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, fend or invest in other
persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (*Uilimate Beneficiaries”} or pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficlaries; and

iii. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided ur}d CEREENAD
above, contain any material misstatement. o

*




e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

fy Based on our examination which included test checks, as disclosed In the Note 43 to the
accounts, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

3) With respect to the matter to be included In the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the Information and explanation given to us, the Company has
pald remuneration to its directars during the year is in accordance with the provisions of and limit
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/N50000S

isnr-

(Sandedp Dinodia)

Partner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLSV5145

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 03.05.2024




Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial

statements of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the financlal statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that;

i)

a) (A) Proper records showing full particulars and situation of Praperly, Plant and Equipment are

maintained.
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management at

reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) On the basis of information and explanation provided by the Management, no immovable

properties are held by the Company and hence 3(i)(c) of the Companies {Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 |s not applicable to the Company.

. d) According to the information and explanations given tp us and the records examined by us, the

ii)

i

iv)

v}

Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

e} According to the infarmation and explanations glven to us, no proceedings have been initiated

or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

a) On the basis of information and explanation provided by the Management, the physical

verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonabie intervals during the year, except for
goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-
end, written confirmations have been obtained by the Management. In our opinion, the
coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its business. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory between physical
inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, in

aggregate, from bank on the basis of primary securily of current assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with bank are materially in agreement with the books of account of the Company.
The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits by any financial
institutions.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has neither made any
investments nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs)
or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(liiy (a) to {f) of the Order are not
applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has
not entered into any transaction covered unider Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and
had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 ended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable. 7




vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1} of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company's products/services and are of the opinion
that, prima facle, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have noi made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) .In respect to statutory dues:

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income Tax, duty of customs
and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate autharities.
Further there were no undisputed outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the
financial year concerned for a period of mare than six months fram the date they became
payable.

b} According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (vii) (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
there are no unrecorded transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1861).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{viif) of the Order are not applicable.

ix}

- a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interesl
thereon to any lender during the year.

b} According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for
which they were oblained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overail examinalion of the financial statements of the Company, we repori that
no funds ralsed on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

g) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) & 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

X)

a) In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or furlher public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible). Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (x){b) of the Order are not applicable.

Xi
) a) As per the information and explanations given fo us on our enquiries on this behalf, no fraud of
material significance on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b} In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed during the year and upto
the date of this report in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companias (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Cenfral Government.




¢) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by

xii)
Xiii)
xiv)
a}
b)
XV)
xvi)
a)

b)
xvii)
Xviil)

Xix)

XX)

a)

the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the
Order are not applicable. .

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, ail transafctions
with the refated pariies are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable,
and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements eic., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of ils business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period
under audit,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them
covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 {xv) of the Order are
not applicable.

The Company Is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi} {a), {b) and (c} of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no core investment
company (CIC) within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) {d) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has net incurred cash
losses in current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory audilors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dales of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the fulure viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any

assurance thal all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. :

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount, in
respect of other than ongoing projects, which are required to be transferred to Fund specified in
Schedule VI to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xx) (a) of the arder are not
applicable,




b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount, in
respect of ongoing projects, which are required to be transferred to special account in
compliance with proviso to sub-section (6} of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 {xx) (b) of the order are not applicable.

xxi) The reporting under ctause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is not
required to prepare consolidated Financial Statements since it doesn't have any subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report.

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants,
. Firm's Registration Number 001478N/NS00005

A P

(Sandeep Dinodia)
Pariner

Membership Number 083689

UDIN: 24083689BKBLSVS5145

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 03.05.2024




Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial
sfatements of Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to ﬁnanf:ial §tater_nents of S_terling
Gtake E-Mobility Limited {(“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in corjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the ysar ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls ] '
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
conlrols based on the internal controt with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential componenis of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {ICAl}. These responsibiliies include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficlent conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financlal information,
as required under the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
fo financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financlal statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtzining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
A company's internal financial contro! with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounling
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial stalements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, malerial
misstatements due 1o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future perlods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal controi
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 8.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountants,
Firm's Registration Number 001478N/NS0000S

N
(Sandeep Dinodia)

Partner
Membership Number 083689
UDIN: 24083689BKBLSV5145

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 03.05.2024




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2024

{All amounts ¥ in lakh, except otherwise specified)

As At As At
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,350.14 754.61
{b) Capital work-In-progress 3A 297.05 5.49
{c) Other Intangible Assets : 4 63.85 79.51
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 4A 206.52 -
{e) Right-of-use assets 4B 84.56 -
{f) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financiai Assetls 5 13.54 2.89
(g) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6 271.33 134.65
{h) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 33.08 -
(i Other Non-Current Assets 8 192.31 20.62
Total Non-Current Assets . . - 2,512.36 997.77
Current Assets
(a) Inventories , Y 4,857.61 3,899.05
{b) Financial Assels
(i) Trade Receivables 10 2,642.04 1.612.25
(iiy Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 1,690.75 0.64
(iii) Bank Balances other than (if) above 12 863.15 820.06
{iv) Other Financial Assets 5 29.64 13.58
(c) Other Current Assets 8 295.54 506.57
Total Current Assets 10,378.73 6,852.14
Total Assets 12,891.09 7,848.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 2,845.60 2,845.60
{b) Other Equity , 14 1,955.30 92.38
Total Equity 4,800.80 2,937.98
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16A 476.87 -
(i) Lease Liability 4B 86.12 -
(iliy Other Financial Liabilities 18 - -
{b) Provisions 15 1,103.30 557.26
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,676.29 557.26
Current Liahilities
{a) Financial Liabilities .
(i) Borrowings 168 1,179.14 878.09
(i) Lease Liability 4B 7.42 -
(i Trade Payables i7
{A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 30.47 .

enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
anterprises and small enterprises.

{iif} Other Financial Liabilities

4,135.34 2,972.84
143.30 112.84




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2024

(All amounts ¥ in lakh, except otherwise specified)

. At AS At
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
{b} Other current Lizbilities 19 373.14 48.33
(c) Provisions 13 545.09 272.46
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 - 70.02
Total Current Liabilities 6,413.90 4,354.,68
Total Liabilities 8,090.19 4,911.94

Total Equity And Liabilities 12,891.09 7,848.92
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 23

The accompanying noles are Integral part of the financials slatements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number; 001478N/MNS00005

{Sandeep Dinbdia)
Pariner
Membership Number 083689

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date:
S B

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Lirited
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{Anish Agarwat)
Dirgetor
DIN No 07056465

Chief Financial Officer

L

(Jaideep Wadhwa)
Managing Director
DIN No 00410019

s
(Pragygg;ena)

Company Secrelary
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Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Statement of Profit & Loss For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts T In lakh, sxcapt cthorwlise spocified)

- FOy s YEar
For the Yaar ended
Particulars Notes anded
ek AROA March, 2023
. Revenue From Operations 21 32.389.92 17,436.00
If. OtherIncome 22 116.97 33.43
1. Total Income (I +1f) 32,506.89 17,469.43
Iv. Exponses
{a) Cost of Materials Consumed 23 2431069 13,569.90
{b} Change in inventory of finished goods 24 61.61 (143.28}
{c) Employee Benefits Expense 25 1,491.95 670.68
{d} Finance Cost 26 184.35 141.39
{e)} Deprecialion and Amortisation Expense v 181.13 B4.27
{f} Other Expanses 28 4.261.34 2.242.08
Total Expenses 30,491.07 16,565,04
V. Profit/ (Loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax (Ill-1V) 2,015.82 904.39
V1. Exceptional ltems - -
VIL. Profit! (Loss) Before Tax {V-Vl} 2,015.82 904.38
Vil Tax Expense: : 30
Current Tax 487.60 159.86
Deferred Tax Charge/ {lncome) {135.40) (3.51)
Tatal Tax Expense 351.20 156.35
IX. Profit/{Loss) For The Year {VII-VIl) 1,664.62 748.04
¥, Other Comprehensive Income
{A) (i) Items that wilt not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
(@) Re-measurement gains/ (josses) on defined benefit plans {1.68) 0.89
(i) Incorne tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassifled to .0.29 0.17
Statement of Profit or Loss : (0.17)
(B) (i} [tems that will be reclassified to Staternent of Profil or Loss - -
() Incoms tax ralaling to ltams that will be reclassified (o
Statement of Profit or Loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax (1.40} 0.82
Xl Total Comprehensive Incomea For The Year (X+XI) 1,663.22 748.86
Xll Earnlngs Per Equity Share: (Face Value ¥ 10 Per Share} 34
1) Basic (amount in T} 5.85 .90
2} Diluted (amount in 3) 5.85 3.80

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.3

The accompanying noles are inlegral part of the financials stalements
As per aur Audit Report of even dale atlached
For S.R. Dinodija & Co. LLP,

Charterad Accountants
Fimm's Registraticn Number: 0D1478NIN500005

ot ko]

{Sandeep Dincdia)
Pariner
Membership Number 053683

Place of Signature: New Delhi

PR w3 Ay

{Anish Agarwal)
Direclor
N No 07058465

(Pankaj Gupta)
Chief Finsncial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Maobillty Limited

Q_L__

(Jaldeep Wadhwa)
Managing Direclor
DIN No 00410018

lg;lja%axena)

Company Secretary
ICS! Membership No.F9640




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts X in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
: - March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Befare Tax 2,015.82 904.40
Adjustments for :
Depreciafion & Amortization (Net) 181.13 84.27
L.oss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 0.64
Property, Piant & Equipment wrilten off 18.87
Provision for warranly (net of reversal} 789.32 701.10
Expense on employee stock option schemes 198.69 -
Unwinding of discount on deposits {0.75) -
Unrealised foreign exchange Loss/(gain} {nef) 428 86,36
Inferest Expense & Finance Costs 184.35 141,39
Interest Income (43.95) {22.23}
Operation Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,348.76 1,896.93
Adjustment For: ' :
(Increase)f Decrease in Financial Assels {1,037.70} {1,036.38)
{Increase)! Decrease in invenlories {956.56) (2,524.10}
{Increase)! Decrease in Other Assets 207.36 (46.65)
- Increase / {Decrease) in Financial Liabilities : 1,196.81 2,724.42
ingrease / (Decrease) In Other Liabilities 324.84 1.91
Increase / {Decrease} in Provisions 27.67 {465.45}
Net Gash Gensrated From Operations 3,108.29 : 549,38
Direct Taxes Pait(Net of Refund Recelved) {550.66) (85.47)
Net Cash From Operating Activities {A} 2,518.61 463.91
B. Cash Flow From investing Activities )
Purchase of PPE & Infengible Assels {including CWIP, inlangible assets under {1411.79) {394.65)
development, capital advance and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of PPE - 0.52
Interest Received 25.89 16.10
Fixed deposils {other than cash equvalents) (43.09) {620.06)
Net cash Used In Investing Actlvities {B) (1,428.99) (998.03)
€. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
issue of Equity Share Capital - 2,000.00
Lang term loan received 667.61 -
Unsecured loan pald - {2,000.00)
Mavement in Cash credit facility 110.31 £688.49
Interest paid {177.42) {155.69}
Net Cash Used In Flnancing Activitles {C}) 600.50 532.80
Net fncrease In Cash & Gash Equivalent {A+B+C} 1,680.11 {1.38}
Cash And Gash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year (.64 2.02
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year 1,620.75 0.64
Cash and cash equivalents include
Cashin hand 3.34 0.64
Balances Wilh Scheduled Banks :
- Curtent Accounls 1,687.41 0.00
1.680.75 0.64
Nota:-
Al figures in brackets represeni outflows.
Summary of Significan! Accounting Policies Note 2.3
The accorpanying nofes are en inlegral part of the financials slatemenls
As per our Audil Report of even date allached
For 8.R. Dinadia & Co., LLP, - For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants Sterling Gtake E-Mohility Limited
Firm's Registration Number; 001478N/N500005
{Sandeep Dibodla) {Anish Agarwal) (Jaia ep Wadhwa)
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership Number 083689 IN No 07056465 DIN No 00410019
. QL%E—?
nka} Gupta) Gy Saxena)
Place of Signature; New Delhi Chisf Finangial Officer Gompany Secrotary

Date: - 1CS1 Membership No.F3640
3 WAY 2024

.




Ster!'ing Gtake E-Mobility Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended March 31,2024

{All amoupts ¥in lakh, except otherwise specified)

{A) Equity share capital Mo, of Shares Armount
Balance As At April 1, 2022 §456000 8,45,60,000,00
Issued during the Year 2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000.00
Balance As At Mar 31,2023 284566000 28,45,60,000,00
Issued during the year - -
Balance As At Mar 31,2024 28466000 28,45,60,000,00
*Number of shares are absolute in nature
{B) Other Equity

Reserve & Sumplus
As at Narch 31, 2023: Deemad Capital Retained Total equlty

Contribution earnings

Balance As At April 4, 2022 - (642.18) . {642.18}
Profitf (Loss) For The Year - 748.04 748.04
Less : Share issue expenses - {14.30) {14.30)
Other Comprehensive income/ {Loss) For The Year” 0.82 0.82
Balance As At Mar 31,2023 - 92.38 92.38
As at March 31, 2024:
Balance as at Apyil 01, 2023 - 92.38 92.38
Profitf (Loss) For The Year - 1,664.62 1,664.62
Add:Employee compensation under ESOp 199.69 - 199.69
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) For The Year - (1.40) {1.40)
Balance As At March 31, 2024 188.65 1,755.81 1,856.30

* Represents Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net)

Summary of Significant Accounting Poli Note 2.3

The accompanying nofes are an inlegral pari of the financials stalements

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For S.R. Dinodia & Co, LLP,
Charterad Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 601478N/NS00005

{Sandeep Dinodia)
Partnar
Mermbership Number 083688

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Dale: 3 wAY 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-NMability Limited

A, h%me %— L—

{Anish Agarwal) {Jaideep Wadhwa)
Diractor Managing Director

No 07056465 DIN No 00410019
W4 a.
(Pankgaj Gupta) lgjfli’s'axena)
Chisef Financial Officer Company Secretary
1CS1 Membership No.F2640




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

Note 1: Corporate Information

Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited is a Public Limited Company (herein referred 10 as 'lhe Company'} which is formed on January 10,
2020 and is domiciled in India. The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Natlonal Capital Tersitory, Delhi &
Haryana in India and has its registered office at Unit No. 515, DLF Tower A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi - 110025. The
Company is dealing in the sale of moter control unit (MCU) used in automobile Industry.

Note2,1 : Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Stndards (referred to as ind AS") as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended
from time to time.

The financiat stalements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 03, 2024.

t MNofe 2.2 : Basis of Praparation

These financiai siatements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as nolilied under the Gompanies {Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant presentation requirernants of the Companies
‘ Act 2013. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except for certaln financial

instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees *, which is also company's functional currency and all values dre rounded to

the nearest lakh {upto two decimals) except otherwise stated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard Is initially adopted or a revision

to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto In use.

Going Concern

“The board of direclors have consldered the financial position of the Company at March 31, 2022 and the projected cash flows and
financial performance of the Company for at least twelve manths from the date of approval of these financial statements wilh respect
to planned cost and cash improvement actions remains on course. Also, the board of directors have taken actions to ensure that
appropriate fong-term cash resources are in place at the date of signing the accounts to {und the Company's operations. In view of
above, financial statements have been prepared on going concern assumption basis.

Mote 2.3 : Material accounting policies
a) Signifleant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepled Accounting Principles {GAAF) requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the applicalion of accounling policies and the reported amounis of assels,
liabllities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent fiabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual resuits could
differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongaing basis. Any revision to accounting
estimales is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Judgements:
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policles, managemeant has made the following iudgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial stalements:

Revenue

The Company assesses its revenue arrangemenlts against specific crteria, i.¢. whether it has exposure to the significant risks and
8 rewards associaled wilh the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if it is acling as a principal or as an

agent, The Company has concluded that they operaling cn a principal to principal basis In all its revenue arrangements.

When deciding the most appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both tha legal form and substantce of the

agreement between the Company and its business partners are reviewed to delermine each party's respective role in the transaction.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporiing period. This reassessment may
resuit in change in depreciation expense in fulure periods.

Leases

Where the Company is the lessee, key judgemenis include assessing whether arrangements contain a lease and determining the
lease term. To assess whether a contract contains a lease requires judgement about whether it depends on a specified assef,
whether the Company obtains substantially all ihe economic benefits from the use of {hat asset and whelher the the Company has a
right to direct the use of the asset. In order to determine the lease term judgement is required as extension and termination options
have to be assessed aleng with all facls and circumstances that may creats an economic incentive 1o exercise an extension oplion, or
not exarcise 4 lermination option. The Company tevises the lease term If there Is a change In the non-cancellable period of a lease.
Estimales include calculating the discount rate which is generally based on the incremental borrowlng rate specific to the lease being
evalualed or for a porifolio of leases with similar characleristics.

Where the Company is the lessor, the treatment of leasing fransactions is mainly determined by whether the lease is considered lo
be an operating or finance lease. In making this assessment, management looks at the subslance of the lease, as well ag the legal
form, and makes a judgement about whether substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferregsATEaNGERents
which do not lake the legal form of a lease bul that nevertheless convey the right to use an asset are also
assessments.




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

- The management's estimates and-assessmenls were based in particular on assumptions regarding the davelopment of the economy as a
whole, the development of sutomobile markets, and the development of the basic legal parameters.

Estimates and Assumptions:

The key assumplions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based ils assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising ihat are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumplions when they ocour.

Income taxes

The Company is subjact to income tax laws as applicable in India. Significant judgment is required In determining provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calcufations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the erdinary course
of businass. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional 1axes will be due,
Where the final fax outcome of these malters is different from the amounts that were initlally recorded, such diffarences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such datermination is made.

Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of defered tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit wilt be
avajlable against which the losses can be utilised. The ullimate realisation of deferred tax assels is dependent upon the generation of
{uture taxable income during the periods In which the temporary differences become deductible. Managemen! cansiders the prejected
future taxable income and tax planning strategles in making this assessment.

b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabllities in the balance sheel based on currentf nom-current classification.
Astets;
An asset s trealed as current when it is:
a) Expecled to be realised or infendad to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
b) Held primarily for the purpose of frading
¢) Expected fo be reafised within twelve months after the reporting petiod, or
d} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from belng exchanged or used to sattle 2 liability for at least twelve months afier the
repating period,
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Llabilities:
A liability is current when:
(a) It Is expected to be settled In normal operating cycle
(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
{c} Itis due to be seltled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
{d) There is no unconditional right to defer the setllement of the liability for at lgast twelve months after tha reporting period
All othier llabilities are classified as nan-current.

Deferred tax assets and lfabliitles are classified as non-currant assels and liabililigs.

Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisilion of assets {or processing and their realisallon in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has Identified twelve months as ils operating cycle.

¢) Revenue

Revenue from contract with customers Is recognised when control of the goods or services are transfarred 1o the customer al an
amount that reflects the conslderation to which the Company expecls to be entilted In exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services 1o a customer as specified in the conlract, excluding the amount collecled on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and
duties collacled on behalf of government). The Company has concluded ihat it is principal in its revenue arrangements.

The Company considers whether thers are other promises In the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaclion price neads to be allocated e.g. warranties. Revenue towards salisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance cbligation. In determining
the transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effect of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing companent, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

If the consideration in & contract includes a variable amount, tha Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
enlitied in exchange for transferring the goods o the cusiomer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
canstrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal In the amount of revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of products provide the
customers with voluma rebates that give rise to variable considaration,

Generally, the Company does not receive short term or iong term advances from its customers except In cerfain scenarios. Using the
practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of promised good or service to the
customer and when the customer pays for good or service will be one year or less. The company does not expect to have any
contracts where the period bstween the transfer of promised goods and services to the customer and paymen{ by the customer
exceeds one year except where the payment terms might provide the entity or the custorner with prolection fro 3

to adequately complete some or all of its abllgations under the confract, As a conseguence, it does not adju
prices for the time value of money.




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

Other Income ‘ . . .
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking inte account the amount outstanding and rate applicable and where no
significant uncertainty as to measurabiliiy or colteciability exists..

d) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumutated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property,
Plant and Equipment includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight, insurance, labour cost, allecable borrowing costs and other
directly atiributable cost to the construction / acquisition of the assets.Subseguent expendilure relaling to Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised only if such expenditure resulls in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance.

Gain or loss arising on account of sale of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference between the net proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the asset is sold.

‘The Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful life and depreciation for significant components of an asset should
be determined seperately. identification of significant components is matter of judgement and decided on case to case basis on the
facts and circumstances of each cases. The company capitalise these cost as a separate component of the asset with consequent
expensina of net carrving value of replaced part.

Depreciation an Property Plant and Equipment is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives of assets specified in
Schedule I to the Companies Act,2013, except in cases of assets cosling up to Rs. 5,000 each, where each asset is fully depreciated
in the year of purchase. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period Is proportienalely charged to Statement of Profit &
Loss. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease lerm or the useful life of the assets.

Subsequent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised In the carrying amount of
the item of property, plant and equipment, if It is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
Company and ils cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part gelting derecagnised. The cost for day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recagnised in statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

Deracognition : Property, plant and equipment Is derecognised when no fulure economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of properly, plant and equipment are delermined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the camying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

¢) Intangible Assets
intangible Assets are measured at cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes any
directly attributable incldental expenses necessary fo make the assets ready for its intended use.

Software which are not an Integral part of related hardware, is treated as Intangible asset and amorlized over a period of three years
or its licensed period, whichever s less.

f) Capltal Work in Progress
Capital work in progress comprises the cost of property, plant 2nd equipmant that are not ready {or their intended use at the reporting
date.Expenditure incurred during the period of construction, including ail direcl and indirect expenses, incidental and related to
construction, s carried forward and on completion, the costs are allocated {o the respective property, plant and equipment. Capital
work-in-progress also includas assets pending instalfation and not available for intended use.

g) Borrowing Costs
7 Bomowing costs consists of interest and amoertization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or produclion of an asset that nacessarly takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale aré capilalised as part of the cast of the asset, Al other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost also inciudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the inferest cost.

k) Inventories

Invenlories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cosi Includes purchase price, freight Inwards, custom duly and
other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories lo their present location and condition but does not includes those expenditure
which are subssquently recoverable by the enterprise from concerned revenue authoriies, The cast of various components of
inventory is determined as follows;-

Raw Materials First in first out method

Stores, Spares and Packing Material Weighted average method

Finished goods and work-in-progress Raw material cost on first in first out method and includes conversion and
other cosls incurred in bringing the inventories to their present value and

1) Employee’s Benefits

Expenses and Liabilitles in respect of employee benafits are recorded in accordance wilh Indian Accof ard 19 -
Employees Benefits issued by the Company {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, 3




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

Short Term Employee Benefits; All employees’ benefits falling due wholly within twelve manths of rendering the services are
classified as short term employee benefits. The benefits like salarles, wages, short term com.pensated absences efc. and the
expected cost of bonus are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related services at undiscounted amount.

Defined Contribution Plan
For Defined Contribution Retirements Benefit Schemes, payments are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Defined Benefit Plan

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried
oul at each balance sheet dale. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period In
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediafely o the extent the benefits are already vested, and olherwise is
amortized on a sfraight line basis over the average period unlil the benefils become vested. The refirement benefit obligation
recognised in the balance shest represents the present value of the definad bensfit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past
service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assefs. Any asset resulting from this calcufation is limited to past service
cost, plus the prasent value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

Post Employment Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Gredit Method with actuarial
valuations belng carried out at each balance sheet date. Acluarial gains and losses are recegnized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized Immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested
and otherwise is amortized on a stralght-line basis aver the average period untit the benafits become vasted.

The retirement beneiit obligalion recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair velue of scheme assefs. Any asset resulling fram this
calculation is limiled to past service cost, plus the present value of avallable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the
scheme.

j} Fareign Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition: The transactions In foreign currency are initially accounted for at the rate prevailing as on the iransaction date.

Converslon: Monetary items denominated in forelgn currency are reported using the closing exchange rale on each Balance Sheet
Date. Non-Monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reporied using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference: The Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary flems or reperling these items at rates

different from rates at which these were initially recorded! reporled in previous financial statements are recognized as
Incomelexpense in the period in which they arise.

k) Taxes on Income : Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of cusrent tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainly, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
enacled or substanlively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax fiabilities are offset only if there Js a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounis, and
itis inlended to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities for financial
reporiing purposes and the comesponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred {ax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and lax credits.

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be avallable against which they can be used.
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available, Therefore, in case of history of
recent losses, tha Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
thare is convincing other svidence that sufficient {axable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized,

Deferred tax assels — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at eash reparting date and are recognised / reduced fo the exient
that it Is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the fax rates that are expecled to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is seltled,
based on he laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dale.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences thal would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the reporting date, to recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assets and lfabilities.

Deaferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally eniorceable right {o offset current tax llabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorities.

Deferred lax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is & legaily enforceable right to set off ih {isE amounts,
and itis intended to reallse the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultanaousiy.




Sterling Gtake E-Mobility Limited
Notes To Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

1} Financial instruments .

A financial instrumenl is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and & financial liability or equity instrument for
another entity.

Financial Assetls

| [ntial recognition and measurement

Tradé receivables are initially recagnised when they are ariginatad. All other financial assets and financla! liabilities are initially
recognised when the Gompany becomes a party to the conlractuat provisions of the instrument.

Al financial assels are recognized inilially at falr value, plus in the case of financiel assels not recorded at fair value through profit or
lass (FVTP L), transaction costs that are altributable {o the acquisition of the financial asset. However, {rade raceivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at fransaction price.

Subsequent measuremant

For purpeses of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debl instruments at amortised cost

-Debl instruments at fair value through other cormprehensive income (FVTOCH)

-Debi instruments, derivatives and equily instruments at {air value through prafit and loss {FVTPL)
y -Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehenslve income (FVTOCI)

Debt Instruments at amoriised cost

The calegory applies to the Company's frade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, securily deposits and other loans
and advances, efc. .

A debt instrument Is measured at the amortised cosl if both the following conditions are met:

{i) The asset Is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels for collecting contraclual cash fiows and

{il) Contractual tarms of the assel give rise on spacified daies to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPL)
on the principal amount cutstanding.

Affer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amoriised cost using the effeclive interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calcutated by taking Into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR. The accretion of EIR is recorded as an ingome or expense In statemant of profit and loss. The losses arlsing
from impalrment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Ali equity investments In the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at falr value.

For all other equity Instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basls. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is imevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair
value changes on the Instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to
statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer tha cumulative gain or loss within
equily, Equity instruments inciuded within the FVTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recagnition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a parl of a financlal asset) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s
Balance Sheet) when:

() The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has explred, or

(i) The Company has transferred its coniractual rights to receive cash flows from the financlal assetl or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full withoul material delay to 2 third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and elther (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially ali the risks and rewards of the asse!, bul has transferred control of the asset.

v Financlal Liabilitles
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabifities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at falr value and, in the case of lcans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
atiributable transaction costs. .
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits received etc.

Subsequent measurement

Far purposes of subsequent measuremsnt, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilitles at amortised cost

-Financial liabilities at falr value through profit and loss {FVTPL}

Financlal llabilities at Amortized cost
Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are Initially racognised at fair value, net of ransaction cests incurred. Afler initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised ¢ost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methed. Gains and losses are
recagnised in the stalement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amorlisation process.
Amoriised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount o pramium on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an Integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amorisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to the
borrowings.
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De-recognition .
A ﬁnanc?al lisbility is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability 1s discharged or cancelled or expiras. Wh.en an e?(isting
financial liability is replaced by another from {he same lender on substantially different terms or the ter{ns_gf an existing habllﬁy are
substantially medified, such an exchange or modificalion is treated as the de-recognition of the original liabifity and the recognition of
a new liabillty. The difference in the respeclive camrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{m) Falr value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received lo sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction fa sell the asset
or {ransfer the liability takes place either;
{2} Inthe principal market far the asset or liability, or
(b} In the absence of a principal markst, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. Tha fair value of an asset or a liabllity is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market
participants act In thelr economioc best Interest.

A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generale economic benefils by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use. ] . . .

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate In the clroumstances and for which sufiicient data are available fo

measure fair value, maXimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,
All assets and llabilities far which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorlsed within the fair value

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to 1he fair value measurement as a whole:

Leval 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement is directly ar indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest levet input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

n} Impaiment
Impainnent of Financial Assels

In secordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) medel for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

{8) Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance.
(b} Trade receivables;using the lifetime expected credit [oss model.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines that whelher there has been
a significan! increase in the credit risk since Injtial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
pravide for impalmment loss. Howevar, if credil risk has increased significantly, lifelime EGL is used. If, in & subsequent period, credit
qualify of the instrument Improves such that there is no longer a significant increese in credit risk since initfal recognitien, then the
enlity reverls to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.Financlal liabilifies are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liatilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derlvatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. Al financial liabilities are recognised initially al fair value and, in the case of
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's {inancial ligbilities include trade and other
payahles, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Impalrment of Non Finanglal Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financlal assels are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indicatlon of impairment considering the provisions of lnd AS 35 ‘Impairment of Assets”. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount Is estimaled.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped logether into cash-generating units
(CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generale cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
Inflows of the other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, lhe estimated future cash flows are discounlad o their present value using a pre-lax discouni rate that
reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific {0 the asset. For the purpose of impalment
testing, assels thal cannot be tested individually are grouped together Into the smallest group of assets that generates cash Inflows

from continuing use that are largely independenl of the cash inflows of other assels or groups of assels (the “cash-generating unit”, ar
“CeUM.

The Company's corporate assets (eg. Central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent
cash inflows. To delermine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to-w hich the corporate
assels belongs.
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An impairment loss s recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU excaeds its estimaled recoverable amount. impairment
losses are recognised In the statement of profit or loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU s allocatad first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of any other assets of the CGUs (or
group of CGUs on a pro-rafa basis.

o) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations arising as a result of past events and it is
probable that there will be an oulflow of resources, the amount of which can be reliably estimated.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but thelr existence is confirmed by
the oceurrence or non occurrence of ene or more uncerain fulure events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statamants.

p) Earning per share

In determining eamings per share, ihe company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post tax effect of any exira ordinary
items.

- Basic eaming per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributeble lo equily shareholders by the weighted
avarage number of equily shares outstanding during the year.

- For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earmning per share, the nel profil or loss for the peried attributable to equily shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilulive polential equity
shares.

q) Leases
Accounting - As a lessee
The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for tand and buildings, The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease,at inception of a contract A contract is,or contains,a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideralion. To assess whether acontract conveys the sighl to control the use of
an idenlified assetlhe Company assesses whether: (i) the confract involves the use of an idenified asset {il) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (fii) the Gompany has the right to
direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease,the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset{*ROU") and a corresponding lease fiability
for all lease arrangements In which it is a lessee, except for [eases with a term of iwelve months or less (short-iermleases) and low
value leases.For these shorl-lerm and low valus leases.the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease lerm.ROU assets and
lease liabifities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cosl,which comprises the initial amounl of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
paymenis made at or prier to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-af-use assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset:Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenaver evenls or changes in circumsiances
Indicate that thelr camying amounts may not be recoverable. .

The lease liability is initially measured at amaortized cost at the present value of ihe future lease paymenis. The lease payments are
discounted using ihe interest rate implicit in the leaseor,if not readily daterminable,using the incremental borrowing rates.Lease

- liabilties are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the refated right of use asset if the Company changes s assessment if
whether it will exercise an extension or a termination oplion.

. T)Operating Segment

in accerdance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of internal
reports used by the Company's Management to allocate resources lo the segments and assess their performance. The Board of
Directors is collectively the Gompany's "‘Chief

Operating Decision Maker' or 'CODM" within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may
evolve in connection with parformance assessment measures put in place.

s) Cash Flow Staternent
The cash flows are reportad using the indirect methad, whereby profil before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions af @ non-
cash nature, any deferrals or acoruals of past or luture operating cash receipts or payments and flem of income ©r expenses
assoclated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segragated as specified in Indian Accounting Standard 7 - Cash Flow Statement.

t) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits wilh an original malurity
of three menths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equlvalents cansist of cash balance on hand,
and shor-lerm deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered
Company's cash managemenl.
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{All amounts ¥ in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 4 : Other [ntangible Assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross Carrying Amount

As At April 1, 2022 7.24 7.24
Additions made during the Year 85,73 85.73
l.ess: Disposals/adjustmants during the Year - -

As At March 31, 2023 92.97 92.97
Additions made during the Year 18.00 18.00
Less: Disposals/adjustmenis during the Year - -

As At Mar 31, 2024 110.97 110.97
Amartisation and Impairment

As At April 1, 2022 2.40 240
Depreciation charge for the Year 11.08 11.06
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year - -

As AtMarch 31, 2023 13.46 13.46
Depreciation charge for the Year 33.66 33.66
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year - -

As At Mar 31, 2024 4742 4742
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2023 79.51 79.51
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 Mar 2024 63.85 63.85
Note 4A : Intangible Assets Under Development
R&D Accounting

Particulars expanse | Software (SAP) Total
Gross Garrying Amount

As At April 4, 2022 - - -
Additions during the Year - - -
less: Capitalized during the Year - - -
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 - - -
Additions made during the Year 194.02 i2.50 206.52
Less: Disposals/adjustments during the Year - -
Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 194.02 12.50 206.52
b) Ageing schedule of Intangibie Assets Under Development as.at March 31, 2024:
Particluars Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for a Total ]

Lessthan 1| 1.2 years 2.3 years More than
year J years

Projects in progress 206.52 - - - 206.52
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Ageing schedule of Intangible Assets Under Developmant as at March 31, 2023:
Particluars Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for a Total |

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Projects in progress

-

Projects temporarily suspended

{c} Refer Note No-16A and 168, for Information on Property,
(d) There are no Intanglble Assets Under Development
is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared o its

Piant and Equipment pledged as securily by the Company.
as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 completion of which
original plan,

°
R -
l:‘,
x
S /
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(All amounts T in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 4B ; Leases

Lease contracts entered by the Gompany majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct Its business in the ordinary
course. The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

Right-of-use assets: movements in carrying value of assets Buildings
Gross Block as at April 01, 2022 . -
Add: Additions during the year -
Less: Disposals 7 adjustments during the year -
Gross Block As at March 31, 2023 ' -
Gross Block as at April 01, 2023 -

Add: Additions during the year 101.47
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year -
Gross Block As at March 31, 2024 101.47

Accumulated Depriciation : . ] .
As at April 01, 2022 -
Add: Depreciation charge for the year -
Less: Disposals/adjustments diring the year -

As at March 31, 2023 “
As at April 01, 2023 -
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 16.91
Less: Disposalsfadjustments during the year : -

As at March 31, 2024 16.91
Net Block :

As at March 31, 2024 BA.56
As at March 31, 2023 -

In 2023-24 and 2022-23, there were no impairment charges recorded for right-of-use assets.

As At As At
Leases: movements in carrying value of recognised liabilities ‘March 31,2024 WMarch 31,2023
Balance at the beginning of year . . -
Addition in lease liabilities 56.08 -
Interest exepnse on lease liabilities 7.45 -
Repayment of lease liabilities - -
Balance at the end of the year 103.54 -
Non-current lease lizbilities 98.12 -
Current {ease liabilities 7.42 -
Total lease liahilities 103.54 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is given in Note 33 in the ‘Liguidity risk’ section.

Leases: Cash Flows

Included in cash flows from operating activities is ¥ 65.35 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥ 54.60 iakh) and Included in cash flows from
financing activittes ¥ Nil fakh (March 31, 2023:3Nil fakh).

Cash flows from operating activities include cash flows from short-term lease and leases of low-value assets. Cash flows from
financing activities include the payment of interest and the principal portion of lease liabilities .

Leases commilled and not yet commenced: There are no leases commited which have not yet commenced as on reporting
date.
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(All amounts T in lakh, except otherwise specified)

: Other Fi Assot As At As At
Note 5 : Other Financlal Ass March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Unsecurad and considerad good) Nan-Current Current Non-Current Current
Security Deposits 13.54 0.30 2.88 2.30
Interest Acerued but notdue en FOR - 29.34 - 11.28
13.54 29.64 2.89 13.58
(a} Refer Noto No-16A and 168, {or Information on Other Financial Assels pledged as security by the company.
Note & : Defarred Tax Assets {Net) ‘ As At As At
Gross Defarred Tax Assets 300.36 148,80
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities (38.03) (14.15)
Total deferred tax assets (Net) 271.33 134,65
As At Recognisedin  RecognisedIn  As At
March 31, Statement of Statemeant of March 31,
2023 Profit and Loss Other 2024
Comprehensive
Deferred tax assets refates to the following:
Carried forward Preliminary Expenses 0.35 {0.35) - -
Provision for Employee Benefils ‘ 275 4,76 0.29 7.80
Pravision for Warantly 139.64 135.45 - 275.02
Bonus 288 2,39 - 5.25
Lease liabifity - 17.77 - 17.77
Performance incentives 3.19 (0.54) - 266
GCtheritems - 0.80 - 0.80
148.80 160.27 0.29 309,36
Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Proparty, plant and 2quipmant 14.15 23.87 - 38.03
1415 23.87 - 38.03
Total deferred tax assetsi(llahlities) (Net) 134.65 136.40 0.29 271.33
As At Recognisedin  Rocognisedin  As At
April 01,2022 Statement of Statament of March 31,
Profitand Loss Other 2023
Comprehensive
Deferred tax ussets relates to the following:
Carried forward Preliminary Expenses 0.71 0.35 - 0.35
Provision for Employee Benefits 0.76 (217) 0.17 275
Unabsorbed Loss & Depreciation 116.97 146.97 - {0.00)
Provision for warranty ‘ 19.34 (120.31) - 139.64
Bonus - (2.85) - 2.86
Periommance incentives - (3.19) - 3.19
Other itams - - - -
137.77 {11.20) 0.17 148.80
Deferrad tax liability relates to the following:
Property, plant and equipment 6547 (7.68) - 14.15
647 {7.68} - 1415
Total deferred tax assetsi{liabiities) (Net) 131.30 {3.51) 047 134,66
Note 7 : Non-Current Tax Assets {net) As At As At

March 31, 2024

Advance lax {Net of Provision for Income Tax ¥ 490.62 lakh (March 31, 2023 : T Nil)) 32.08

33.06
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{All amounts T in lakh, except otherwise specified)

Note 8 : Other Assetls

As At As At
March 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Capilal Advances 188.16 - 20.14 -
Advance lo Suppllers - 168.52 - 100.35
Advance lo employees - 0.78 - 2.07
Prepaid Expanses 4.16 80.91 0.48 14.59
Balance with Govamment Authorities - 9.90 - 389.57
Cther Regeivable (refar Note 'a’ balow) - 25.42 - -
192.31 295.54 20.62 506.57
Notes
a) Olher Receivables represents GST recoverable of ¥ 25.42 lakh ( March 2023: ¥ Nil).
b) Refer Note No-16A and 168, for Information on Other Assets pledged as securily by the Company.
Note 0 ; Inventories ’ . As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31,
(Valued at lower of cosl and nel realisable value)
Raw Material 2,853.24 2,426,085
Goads in Transit- Rav Malerial 1,154.62 688.14
Finished Goods 316.34 868.21
Goods in Transit- Finished Goods 488.09 197.84
Stores,Spares and Consumablas 41.82 i6.21
Packing Material 3.49 260
4,857.61 3,8499,05
{a) Refer Note No-16A and 16B, for Information on Invenicry pledged as security by the Company.
Note 10 ; Trade Receivable As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31,
Trade Receaivables Considered Good- Ursecured 254204 1,512.25
Trade Receivables Considered Good- Securad . - -
2,642.04 1,612.25
a) The company has no trade recelvables having sigalficant increase in credit risk, or which are credit impaired.
b) Refer Nole No-16A and 168, for Infermation on Trade Recelvable pledged as security by tha Company.
¢} Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Not due Less than | 6 months-| 1-2 years 23 years More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables I6.67 2.173.08 100.63 51.66 - - 2,642.04
- considered good
(i Undlsputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
i} Undisputed Trade - - - - - -
Regaivables —cradil impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade - - - - . -
Receivables— cansidered good
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -
— which have slgnificant increase
in credit risk
RN
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables . - - - o - 1% .
~ credit impaired o ‘: /. 5
-~ *
- ")
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Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following petiods from due date of paymant

Not due

Less than 6 | 6 months -
months 1year

1-2 years

2-3 years More than 3 Total
years

!y Undisputed Trade receivables
— considered good

148.20

144175 21.18

1.12

- - 1,612.25

[{E3] Undisputed Trade
Receivables - which have
significant Increase in credit risk

(iR Undisputed Trade
Recalvables — eredil impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade
Receivables— considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivablas
-which have significant increase
Jin credit rigk

{vi} Disputed Trade Recelvables
~credit impaired

Note 11 : Cash and Cash Equivaleﬁts

Balances With Schedulaed Banks
- Current Accounts *
Cash on hand

Nate 12 : Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent

Deposils with original maturily of more than 3 months bul not more than 12 months *
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months *

" Includes depsit of T 426.15 lakh (March 31, 2023: T 320.08 Iakh} pledged with bank agalnst LC.

As At As At

Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

1,687.41 000
3.34 0.64

1,690.75 0.64
* Represents ¥ Nil (March 31, 2023: T 82) as amounts lesser than 2 five hundred appear as zero due to round-off crilera.

73.95 820.06
789.20 .

863.15 820,06

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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‘Note 13 : Share Capital

Authorised:
30000000 equity shares of ¥10/- each
{ March 31 2023; 30000000 equity shares of T10/- each )

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up:
28456000 equity shares of $10/- each
{ March 31 2023: 28456000 equity shares of ¥10/-sach)

a) Reconciliation of Authorised, issued and Subscribed Share Capital:

1. Reconciliation OF Authorised Share Capital ;

Outstanding al the Beginning Of The Year
IncreaseX{decrease) during the year

Outstanding at the End Of The Year

. Reconciliation of Issued and Subscribed Share Capital:

Quistanding at the Beginning Of The Year
Add: [ncreasel{Decrease) During The Year

As At As At
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
3,000.00 3,000.00
2.845.80 2,845.60
2,845.60 2,845.60
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
No. of Shares  Amount No. of Amount
Shares
30000000 3,000.00 15000000 1,500.00
- - 15000000 1,500.00
30000000 3,000.00 30000000 3,000.00
March 31 ,2024 March 31,2023
No. of Shares  Amount No. of Amount
Shares
28456000 2,845.60 8456000 845.60
- - 20000000 2,000.00
28456000 2,845.60 28456000 2,845.60

Qutstanding at the End Of The Year

b) Termsirights Attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equily shares having 2 par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vole
per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be enfitled fo receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. Mo

dividend is proposed by Board of Directors of the Company

c¢) Details of shareholders helding mare than 5% shares in the company

Sterling Tools Limited *
{(including 6 shares held by nomineee shareholdars)

_d} Shares held by holding company
Sterling Taols Limited =

28456000 (March 31,2023: 28456000} Equity Shares of 10 each

(including 6 shares held by nominese shareholders)

) Shareholding of Promoters

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares % holding No.of Shares % helding
28456000 100.00% 28456000 100.00%

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding

28456000 100.00% 28456000 100.00%

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023

Promofer name No. of Shares %of total % Chan'ge No. of Shares %of total % Change
shares during the shares during the
Sterling Tools Limited * 2B456000| 100.00% 0.00% 28456000L  100.00% 236.52%

(including & shares held by nomineee shareholders)
* No. of shares have been given in absolute numbers
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Note 14 ; Other Equity As At As At
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Deemed Capital Contribution 199.69 -
Retained Earnings 1,755.61 92.38
Total . 1,855.30 9238

a) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer "Statement of Change In Equity™.
b) Nature and Purpose of Cther Equity
(i) Retained Earnings

Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders. All the profits made by lhe Company are transferred to retained earings from statement of profit
and loss.

i) Deemed Capital Contribution

" Under the Employee Stock Oplion Plan 2023 ("ESOP 2023" of "lhe Plan"), share options of the holding company i.e.Sterling Tools
Limited are granted to a director of the Company. The Share Options Outstanding Account is used to recognise the value of equity-
settled share-based payments provided to employees, as parl of their remuneration. The fair value of the equity-setlied share based

payment transactions with employees is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with corresponding credit to Deemed Capital
Contribution

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Nate 15 : Provisions Mon-current Current  Non-current Current

Provisions For Employee Benefits

Compensated Absences 11.67 4.35 5.91 0.85

Gratuity {Refer Note No, 29} 22.90 6.37 8.84 0.65

Other Provisions

Provision for warcanty 1,068.73 534.37 542.51 271.26
4,193.30 545.08 557.26 27246

i) Movement of provision for warranty :

The Company is liable towards wamanly claims made by users of its products. A provision is estimated for expected warranty claims in
respect of products sold during the year on ihe basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding fallure trends of produets and
costs of rectification or replac_ement. It is expected that most of_ this cost will be incurred over the warranly period, which extends upto 3
years.

Opening Balance|Actual utilisaticn/| Reversal during the Provision created during the |Closing Balance as on
as on Aprl 1,|Replacement during|year year March 31, 2024
2023 the year
813.77 12.6 178.90 980.84 1,603.10

Actual utilisationf
Replacement during
the year

Opening Balance
as on Apri 1,
2022

Reversal during the
year

Provision created during the
year

Closing Balance as on
March 31, 2023

112.68

14.51

715.61

813,78

H) Contingent Liabllities and commitments:
Capital Commitments :
Estimated amount of cenlracts femalning to be execuled on capital account {nel of advances) and which have not been provided for in the

financial statements, amounts fo T 523.54 lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥ 40.92 lakh). The Gornpany does not have any other long term
commitments or material non-cancellable Contractual Commitments, which may have a material impact on the financial stalemenls.

Contingent Liabllities : No contingeni liabilitizs have been identified by the management as at March 31,2024,
Note 16A: Long Term Borrowings

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Non-Current Current Non-Current Gurrent
Long Term:
Term Loan - Secured
From Banks 476.87 190.75 -
476.87 180.75 - -
Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Short Term - 190.75 - -
Borrowings" {refer note 168}
476.87 - - -
Note 168 : Short Term Borrowings
) As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured:
Gurrent Maturities of Long Term bomrowings {Refer Note 16A) 1890.75 -
Cash Credit Facllities From Bank * 988.40 878.09
1,179.14 873.09

a} For Interest rate and Liquidily risk related disclosures, refer note 33.
b) The Nature of Security for Term Loan are :

The Term loan are secured by way exclusive charge on entire movable fixed assets & current assets of the Company.The loan is also
secured by corperte gurantee of Holding Gompany i.e Slerling Taols Limiled. The term loan(s) carries variable interest rate of 8.75% linked
with 3m- Thill rate.
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c) The Nature of Security for Cash Credit Facility are :

* The Cash Credil facility Is primarily secured by corporate guarantee from holding company ‘Sterling Tools Lid* , and secured by way of first par passu
¢harge on entire movable & current assets of the company, Cash credit facilily carries interesl rate 9.32% p.a.linked with TRIll rate & M MCLR plus 0.15%.

d} Maturity Profile- Secured Term Loans

Maturity profile of Secured Term Loans is as set out 2024-25 2025-26 Beyond 2025-26
below :
Term loan from the bank is repayabla in quarterly 190.75 190.75 286.12
instaliments .
Note 17 : Trade Payables As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Total cutstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Sub-note it below) 30.47 -
- Tolal cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,135.34 2,972.84
4,165.81 2,972.84
{) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars Qutstandingfor following perfods from due date of payment
Notdue | Unbilled |Lessthan| 1-2years 2-3years More than Total
_|_ dues 1 year 3 years
{a} Micra & Small enterprises 30.47 - - - - - 047
{b) Others 1,218.85 47,10 | 2,865.71 0.59 0.23 2.86 4,135.35
(c) Disputed dues - Micro & Small - - - - - - -
enterprises
d) Disputed dues - Others - . - - - - -
1i) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023:
Particulars Outstandingfor following periods from due date of payment
Notdue | Lessthant | 1-2years | 2.3 years More than Unbillted Total
year 3 years dues
(a) Micro & Small enterprises - - - - - -
(b) Others 1,695.47 1,253.73 0.52 1.10 - 22,02 2,972.84
{c) Disputed dues - Micro & Small - - - - - -
enterprises
d} Dispuled dues - Others - - - - N -

{iily As per Schedule Il of the Companias Act, 2013 and as certified by the managemen, the amount due to Micro & Small enterprises as
defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 is as under;

Principal interest Total
{a) the principal emount and the Interest due thereon (o be shown separately)} remaining 3047 - 30.47
unpald lo any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
(b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and - - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2008), along with the amouni of the
payment made fo the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounfing year;
{c) the amount of interest dug and payable for the period of delay in making payment {whic - - .

h has bean paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

{d} the amount of interesl accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of each accounting -
year; and

{e} the amaount of further interest remainlng due and payable even In the succeeding -
years, untl such date when the inierest dues above ara actually paid io the small

enterprise, for the purpnse of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under seclion 23 of

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. .

(iv} The amount does not include any amount due to be transferred to Investor Protection and Education furs

(v} This Information has been compiled In respect of parties to the extent they could be identified as Micro & Small Enterprises on the basis of
information avallable with the Management as at March 31, 2024
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As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Note 18 : Other Financial Liabilities Non-current Current  Non-current Current
Creditors for Capital Expenditure - 130.21 - 112.94
Interest Accrued but not due - 4.86 - -
Forward Contract Payable 8.23 - -
- 143.30 “ 412.94
Note 18 : Cther Current Liabilitles As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
> Advances received from customers : 64.41 7.26
Statulory Dues 308.73 41.07
- 373.14 48.33
Note 20 : Current tax liabilities (Net) As At As At

March 31, 2024

Provision for income tax [ Net of advance tax ¥Nil lakh (March 31, 2023: ¥ 86.34 lakh) ] -

[This space has been lefl blank intentionally)

March 31, 2023

70.02

70.02
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Note 21 : Revenue from Operations

Sale of Producls

- Flnished Goods

Sale of Services

- Product Support Services
Other Operating Revenues
- Sale of Scrap

a) Performance Obligation

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products lo the customers.

Far The Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For The Year Endod
March 21, 2023

3227417 17.406.63
£6.62 2573
59.12 3.64

32,388,892 17,436.00

There are no long term contracts with customers against which, performance cbligation is pending. Accordingly disclsoure of unsatisfied
or remaining performance obligation (which is affecled by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations,
adjustment for revenue that has not been matetialized, tax laws elc.) is not applicable te the Gompany.

b) Disaggregation of Revenue: The lable below presents disaggregated revenues from conlracls with cuslomers on {he basis of
geographical spread of the operations of the Company. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,

amount of revenues and cash flows are affected by market and other economic faciors:

Partleulars

- Domestic
~ Export

Revenue customer wise
- Related party
- Non-related parly

¢} Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

For The Year Ended Far Tha Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
32,389.92 17,436.00
32,389,92 17,436.00
6.49 -
32,383.43 17,436.00
32,389,92 17.,436.00

ind AS 115 requires disclosure of ‘revenue recegnised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period’ and 'revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or parizlly satisfied) in

previous period. Same has been disclosed as below:

Amounts included In contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Performance obligations salisfied in previous years

d) Assets and Ilabllities refated to contracis with customers

Conteact assets related to sale of goods
Coniract Jiabililles related to sale of goods
-~ Advance from customers

e) Significant changes In contract assets and Habilitias

Changas in balance of contract iigbilities during the year:
 Opening balance of contract liabilities

Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities

Addition in balance of contract lizbilities for current year

Closing balance of confract liabilities

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7.26 34.20

7.26 34.20

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

54,41 7.26

64.41 7.26
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7.26 34.20

{7.26} (34.20)

54.41 7.26

64.41 7.26
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f) Reconclliation of Revenue from operations with contracted price

Contracted Price (Net of Sale return) 35,616.96 17.436.00
Less: Discounts and Other Schemes 3,227.05 -
32,389,82 17,436.00

{g) Satisfaction of performance cbligations

The Company's revanue Is derived from the single performance obligafion to transfer primarily of MCU {Motor Contrel Unit) under
arrangements in which the transfer of controf of the producls and tha fulfillment of the Company’s performance obligation occur at the
same time. Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised when the Campany has {ransferred control of the goods {o the buyer and fhe
buyer obtains the bensfits from the goads, the potential cash flows and the amount of revenue {the transaction price) can be measured
refiably, and it is probatie that the Company will collect the consideration {o which It is entitied to in exchange for the goods.

Whether the customer has oblained contre! over the asset depends on when the goods are made available to the buyer and who takes
possession of the goeds, depending on the delivery terms. In case of the Company's operations, generally the criteria to recognize
revenue has been met when its products are deliveered to its customers, this is the point in time when the Company has completed its
performance obligations, Revenue Is measured al the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable, the amount the

Compahy expects ta be entilled to.

Note 22 : Other Income For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income
- on Fixed Deposits 43.80 22.23
- on Incomea Tax Refund 0.16 0.12
Unwinding of discount on deposits 0.75 -
Net Profit on Forelgn Exchange Fluctuation 47.64 -
Miscellaneous Income 24.63 11.08
146.97 33.43
Note 23 : Cost of Materials Purchased For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

QOpening Stock 2,426.05 648,26

Add : Purchases 24,737.88 16,350.69

Less: Closing Stock 2,853.24 2,428.05
24,310.68 13,669.91

Note 24 : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods For The Yoar Ended For The Yoar Ended

Inventory at the beginning of year

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

- Finished Goods (Including goods In transit) 866.05 722.76
Inventory at the end of year
- Finished Goods (Inctuding goods in transit) B04.44 866.05
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 61,61 {143.29)
Note 26 : Employee Benefils Expense Fer The Year Endod For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salary, Wages & Bonus 1,158.60 616.06
Conlribution to Provident & Other Funds 32,23 14.97
Expense on employee slogk option schemes” 199.G9 -
Compensated absences 1222 6.14
Gratuity 18.10 .\ 7.899
Staff Welfare Expenses 71.11 ix /f 5.53
\. >
1,491.95 N0 As0EL 670,69

* Refer Note 33A
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Note 26 : Finance Costs

interest on

- Borrowings

- On Lease Liability

- Delayed payment of taxes
Other borrowing cost

Note 27 : Depreciation

Depreciation expense on Property Plant and Equlpment
Armortization expense on Intangibe Assets
Amortization expense on ROU

Nota 28 : Other Expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed
Packing Material Consumed
Jobwork Charges
Electricily Expenses
Rent
Rales & Taxes
Insurance
Legal & Professlonal Charges
Repair & Maintenance
-Piant & Machinery
~Building
-Other
Laboeur Charges
Freight Quiward
Payment to Auditers (Refer Sub-note (a) below)
Travelling & conveyance expenses
Exchange Fluctuation (Net}
Business Promotion
Provision far warranty (net of reversal)
CSR Expense
Loss on sale of proparty, plant & equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment writlen off
Miscelianeous Expenses

a) Details of Paymenis to Auditors:
As Auditor:

-~ For Audit

- For Tax Audit

- For other Services

' - Reimbursement of Expenses

For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For The Year Ended
March 31, 20623

132,79 105.15
7.45 -
3.02 B.50
41.07 29.74
184.36 141.39
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
130.56 73.20
33.66 11.0_6
16.91 -
181.43 84.27
For The Year Ended For The Yoar Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
164.85 51.84
17.68 14.98
2063.59 623.72
41.47 19.39
65.35 54.60
8.14 077
20.66 17.16
7225 75.25
509 5.03
30.77 16.83
12.82 11.24
324 58 183.11
170.52 152.51
4.78 4.50
145.69 82.86
- 86.38
25.72 34.08
789.32 701.10
126 -
- 0.64
18.87 0.00
268.92 -108.11
4,261.34 2,242.08
2.50 2.50
1.25 1.25
0.90 0.75
0.14

4.79
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Note 29 : Gratuity and Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans

{} Defined Confribution Plans

The Campany makes contribution towards provident fund/ penslon fund. Under the scheme, the Company Is required to coniribute a
specified parcentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, 1o the defined contribution scheme

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623
Provident Fund 31.37 14.46
ES{ Contribution 0.23 0.16
Labour Welfare Fund 0.63 0.36
Total 32.23 14.97

1) Defined benefif plans . . - ‘

In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits”, an acluarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Method" was carried out,
through which the Company is able {o delermine the prasent value of obligations. "Projected Unit Credit Method" recognizes each period of
sefvice as giving rise to additional unit of employees benefit enfittement and measures each unit separately lo built up the final ebllgation.

Gratuity Scheme

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Graltuity Is cafculated as 15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof
in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement / termination/ resignation. The benefit vesis an completing 5 years of service by the
employee, The Company makes provision of such gratuity assetf Liability in the books of accounts on the basis of aclurial valuation as per
projected unit credit method; net with annual conlribution made by Company to insurer to provide gratuity benefils by faking scheme of
insurance,

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Stalement of profit and loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the defined benefil plan - gratuity. These have been provided on accrual basis,
based on year end actuanial vaiuation.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuit; Gratul
Particulars (Unm}undid) (Unfunzzd)
1} Change in Benefit Obligation
1 Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 8.49 248
2 Inlerest cosl 0.70 0.18
3 Current service cosl 17.40 7.81
4 Benefits paid - -
5 Actuadal {gain) / loss on obligation 1.68 (0.99)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 29.28 948

ity Net Benefit Expense Recognlised in the Statement of Profit or Loss :
Current service cost 17.40 7.81

Nel Interest cost

0.70 0.18
Net cost 18.10 7.89
ili} Expense Recoagnised in Other Comprehensive Income ;
Remeasurements - Due {a Financial Assumptions 1.04 {0.28)
Remeasurements - Due lo Experience Adjusiments 0.64 (0.71)

Total Rem
easurement 1.68
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iv) Principal actuarlal assumptions af the balance sheet date are as follows:

Economic assumptions
1 Discount rate 7.08% ‘ 7.38%
2 Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels 6.00% 6.00%
3 Expected Rale of Return on Assetls

Demographic assumptions
1 Relirement Age (years) 58 58

2 Morlality Table Indian Assured Lives Mortality *  Indian Assured Lives Mortality
{2012-14) {modified) ulimate (2012-14) (modifiad) ultimate

The eslimales of fulure salary increases, considered in acluarial valuation, take aceaunt of inflation, sentarity, promotion and other relevant
faclors, such as supply and demand In the employment markel.

v} A Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumption as is as Shown Below:

For the year ended For the yaar ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

. Gratui . Gratul
Particulars (unfundgj) (Unfundgi)
A. Discount rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 400 basls points 25.93 8.01
increase in Discount Rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis poinis 33.38 11.32
decrease in Discount Rate
B. Salary escalation rate
Efiect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis points increase in 33.56 11.38
Salary Escalation Rate
Effect on Defined Benefit Obligation due to 100 basis points decrease in 25.72 7.95
Salary Escalation Rate
C. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation is as Follows:
1 year 6.37 0.65
2to 5 years 23 0.35
Above 5 years 4.96 1.06

The Sensitivity analysis above have been delermined based on a method that exirapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
restll of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivilies due to morality and withdrawals are insignificant and hence lgnored.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payments, rale of increase of pensions before retirement & life
expeclancy are not applicable belng a lump sum benefit on retirement, -

d} Risk

Salary Increases Acluel salary increases will increase the deflined benefit liabillty. Increase in
salary increase rate assumption in fulure valuations will also increase the liability.

Discount Rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuafions can increase the liabilily,

Morality and disabifity Actual delails and disability cases proving lower or higher than asstmed in the
aratuily valuation can impact the liabilities.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Mote 30 : Income Tax Expense

i) Income tax recognised in the statement of profit or loss

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gurrent tax 487,80 169.86
Deferred tax {136.40}) {3.51)
Total Income tax expensef{Income) reported In the statement of profit or loss 351.20 156.35
it} Deferred tax related to items recognised in OC| during the year:
.For the year ended For the year ended -
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rermeasurement of defined benefit plans 0.29 {0.17)
Net tax recognised in retained earnings 0.29 {0.17)
fii) Reconclliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
For the year endad For the year ended
March 31, 2024 farch 31, 2023
Accounting profit/ {loss) before income tax 2,015.82 904.39
At India’s statujory income tax rate of 17.16 % 345.92 155.19
Tax Effect of Expenses nol deductable for tax purposes 0.74 1.33
impact of differance in fax rate 3.52 -
Others 1.03 {0.17)
At the income fax rale 351.20 156.35
Income tax expense reparied in the stalement of profit and loss 351.20 156.35
Variance . .

The Company offsels 1ax assels and flabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assels and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred 1ax lighilities relale to income laxes levied by the same tax autharity.

[This space has been lefl blank itentionally]
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Note 31; Capital Management

For the purpese of Company's capilal managemenl, capital includes issued equity capital,and all other equity reserves attributabla lo the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholdgr value.

The Company manages ils capital struclure and makes adjustmenls in light of changas In economic conditions and the requirements of the
financlal covenants. To maintain or adjus! the capital strusture, the Company may return capital lo shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capltal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

As At As At

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings {Refer Nole 16A & 16B ) 1,656.01 878.09
Lease Laibllity (Refer Note 48 ) 103.54 -
Trade Payables (Refer Note 17) 4,165.51 2,972.84
Other Financial liabilities (Refer Mote 18) . 143.30 112.94
Other Payables (Refer Note 19) . -373.14 48.33
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11) 1,690.75 0.64
Net debt {A} 4,751.05 4,011.66
Equity share capital {Refer Note 13) 2,845.60 2,845.60
Cther equity (Refer Note 14} 1.955.30 92,38
Total Capital (B) 4,800.90 2,937.38
Capital and netdebt (C = A + B) 9,551.95 6,949.64
Gearing ratlo (D = AIC) 48.74% E7.72%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitat during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31.

{This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Noto 32 ; Fair value measuroments

)]

)

Financlal Instrumenis by cataefrory

All financial assels and liabllities viz. lrade receivables, securily deposits, cash and cash equivalents, olher bank balances, Interest receivable, other
recelvables, frade payables, employee relalad Habliiies and borrowings including tease liablliles, are measured al amortised cost except such financial
assets and liability which are measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Falr value hlorarchy

All financial instruments for which falr value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hisrarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level lnput that Is sigaificant to tha fair value measurement as a whole.

Laval 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identical assals ot liabilitles.

Leve! 2: Valuallon lechniques for which the lowest level input thal has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are cbservabla, sither diractly or
Indirectly.

Level 3: Valuatlon lechniques for which the lowesl leve! input which has a significant effect on the fair value measuremant is no! based on observable
market data.

The folloving tabla shows the camying amounts and fair values of financia! assets and financials Habilitles, including their levels of in the falr value
htararchy:

As At 31.03.2024

Carrying Amount Falr Value
FVOCI |Mandatorlly {Gther Othar Total Quated  |Significant [Significant |Total
Particulars at FVTPL financlal [financial jearrying |pricos In |obsprvable junobservatl
assots - |liabititles famount  active inputs e
amorttised |amortise matkots |{(Lovel2) inpuls
cost d !(Leval 1) {Lovel 3)
Financlal agsots measured at falr value - - - - - - . - R
Finanelal assots not measured at falr valua
Trade Recelvables - - 2.842.04 - 2,642.04
Cash and Gash Equivalents - - 1.690.75 - 1.690.76 . - - -
Other Bank Balancos - - 863.15 - 863.15 - - - -
Security Depasits - - 13.84 - 13.84 - - - -
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit - - 28.34 - 29.34 - - - -
- - §,239.13 - 5,239,13 - - - -
Financlal Liability measured at fair valuo - - - - - - - - -
Financtal {labllity not moasured at falr valuo
Borrowings - - - 1656.01  1,656.01 - - - -
Lease Laibifity 103.54 103.54 -
Credliors for Capital Expendilure - - - 130.21 130.21 - - - -
Inlerest Acerued but not dug on T
t not dua en Term Loan } . : 485 486 . R R .
Forvrard Contract Payable 8.23 - 8.23 8.23 8.23
Trade payables - - - 4165.81  4,165.81 - - - -
- 8.23 - 6,060.42 B,06B8.65 - 8.23 - 8,23
As At 31.03.2023
Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVOCI  |Mandatorily {Other Othor Total Quoted  iSignificant |Signlficant jTatal
atFvipL financial [flnaneial jearrylng  jpricos In {observabio |unohservabl
Partieutars assoels - llabillies 4umount  jactive Inputs -]
arnoriised Jamortise markets . |(Lovel 2) jinputs
cost d {Laval 1} {Leval 3}
cost
Financial assets measured at falr value - - - - - - - - -
Financial assets not moeasured at fair value
Trade Recelvables - - 1.612.25 - 1.812.26 - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.64 0.64
Other Bank Balances - - 820.06 - 820.06
Security Deposits - - 518 - £19 - - - -
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit - - 11.28 - 11.28 - - - - -
- - 2.449.41 - 2,449.41 - - - -

Financial Liability moasurad at fair value - - . - - N

Financial Liability not measured at fair

Borrowings - - - 878.0% §78.09 - -

Creditors for Capital Expenditure - - - 112.94 112,94

Interest Payable - - - - .

Trade payables - - - 297284 297284 - -
- - - 3,963.87 3,963.87 - - - -

Managament has assessed that loans, eash and cash equivalants, olher bank balances, irade payables.approximalte their carrying amounis largely dus to
the short-torm matudties of these Instruments.
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Note 33: Flnancial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabililies Is to finance the
Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations.

The Company's principal financial assets includes security deposils, trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalents. deposits with bank,
interest accrued in deposits, receivables from related and other parties and interest acerued thereon. .

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior [eve! management of these risks and is supporied
by Treasury department that advises on the appropriale financial risk governance framework.

A. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument vill fluctuate because of changes in markel prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and cther price risk, such as equity price risk and commodiy risk.
Financial instruments affected by markel risk borrowings, short term depasits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the gosition as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

I} Interest rata risk ) ] . .
Interest rale sisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.
liy Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange ratss relates primarily to the Company's operating activities {when
revenue or expense Is denominated in a foreign currency)

Unhedgad Farelgn Currency Exposure Currency in lakh

31 March 2024 CNY usp GBP HKD JPY
Trade payables and other financial liabilities 20273 - - - -
Forex in Hand 0.00 001 - 0.01 0.01 0.15
31 March 2623 CNY usbD GBP HKD JPY
Trade payables and other financial Habilities 206.32 - - - -

Sensitlvity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening {weakening) of foreign currencies against INR at the end of the year, would have affected the
measurement of financial asset and financial liability denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount
shown below, This analysis assumes that alf other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,

Profit f {Lass) INR in lakh

31 March 2024 Strengthening Weakening
Changes in Currency rate (5% movement) .
Trade payables and other financial liabllities (117.01) 117.01
Foreign Currency on Hand 0.08 (0.08)
31 March 2023
Changes in Currency rate (6% movement)
Trade payables and other financial liabilities (123.28) 123.28
Due to Intetrest Rate

Increase orlfEffect on

decrease in|profit

basis polnts before tax

31-Mar-24
INR 0.50 (12.67)
1267

INR (0.50)
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B. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that caunterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leadiqg_ io a-ﬁnancial
loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from ils operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial instilutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financlal Instruments.

i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relaling to
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer Is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

The ageing analysis of trade recelvables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Particulars Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 Yrs 23Yrs  Morethan 3 Total
Months year Yis
. Trade Receivables as of March . 316.67 - -
31, 2024 2,173.08 100.63 51.66 - - 2,642.04
Trade Receivables as of March 148.20
31, 2023 1,441.75 21.18 1.12 - 1,612.25

i) Financialinstruments and

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial instilulions is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance with the
Company's policy. Investments of surpius funds are made only with approved counterpariles and within credil limils assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparly credit limils are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updaled
throughout the year subject tv approval of the Company's finance commitiee. The limits are set to minimise the concenlration of risks and
therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s polential failure to make payments. .

GC. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Company may not be able to mest its present and [uture cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses.

The Company's objective Is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to mest its cash and collateral requirements. The Company

closely menitors ils llquidity posilion and deploys a robust cash management system. it maintains adequate sources of financing including
loans frem banks at an oplimised cost.

The table below summarlses the maturity profile of the Company's financial llabilities based on contractual undiscounted

As at March 31, 2024 On demand Less than 3 3to12 1i08 > 5 years Total
months months years
Borrowings 988.40 47.69 143.06 476.87 - 1,656.01
Lease Liabilities - - 16.66 110.38 - 127.05
Trade payables - 4,165.81 - - - 4,165.81
Creditors for Capital Expenditure - 130.21 - - - 130.21
Interast Payable - 4.86 - - - 4.86
Forward Contract Payable - 823 - - - B.23
Total 988.40 4,356.79 159.72 587.25 - 6,09218
As at March 31, 2023 On demand Less than 3 Jtoi2 1{0b > G years Total
months months years
Bornwings 878.09 - - - - 878.08
Trade payables - 2,972.84 2972.84
Creditors for Capital Expenditure - 112.94 - - - 112.94
Tatal 878,09 3,085.78 - 3,983.87

[This space has been left blank Intentionally]
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Note 33A: Sharo based payments (ESOP)

a) Under the Employee Stock Oplion Plan 2023 ("ESOP 2023 or "lhe Plan®), share options of the holding company i.e.Sterling Tools Limited are granted to
a director of tha Company. Such Employee Stock Option vested in an Employee under the Plan entitles the holder thereef 1o gpply ior_and ?e allotted one
equily share of the Company of ¥10 each upen exercise thereof. The share options will be vesled over a pedod of 1-4 years wilh exercise price of Rs.2 per
share, The exercise period commences from the date of vesting in respect of aplions granted under the Scheme and ends upon the expiry of ten years from

the date of each vesting.

) The expense recognised for employee services received during the year Is shown in the following lable -

Particut As At As At
arfeuiars March 31, 2024|March 31, 2023
- Expense arising from equily-setlied share- 100,60 )
- based payment {ransaclions -
Total.exponse arlsing from share-based
4193.69 -
_|payment transactions
¢) Movemont during the year .
tPartisulars Forthe year ondod
Mareh 31,2024 | March 31,2023
{Np.) {No.)
Outstanding at the haginning of the year - -
Add: Granted during the year 640,431 .
Lass: Vesled and Exercised during the year - -
Lass: Expired/ Lapsed during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year - 6,40,431 -
d) The details of Emiployee Stock Option Plan 2023 are as under-
Schome Yoar Dote of Grant Numbar of Vesting |Exerciso poriod| Exercise | Welghtad
Qptlons Dato price per Average
Grantod shara Exerclsa
prica por
sharg
2023 31-01-2024 1,60,108| 31-Jan-25 10 years from 2.00 200
date of vesling
2023 31-01-2024 160,108 | 31-Jan-26 10 years from 2.00 2.00
Employee Slock Option Plan 2023 ("ES0P date of vesting
2023" or "the Plan™) 2023 31-01-2024 160,108 | 31-lan-27 | 10 years from 2.00 2.00
date of vesting
2023 31-01-2024 1,60,108 | 31-Jan-28 10 years from 2.00 2.00
dale of vesting

€) The Fair value has been calculaled using the Black-Scholas Opfion Pricing Model and Ihe significant assumplions and inputs to estimale the fair value of
aplions granted during the year are as follows:

Particulars ESOP Schome 2023- (January 31, 2024)

1 year 2 yaars 3 years 4 yaars
Grant dale falr value 360.8 359.1 3574 355.6
Risk -Free [nlerest Rafe 7.3% 7.3% T7.3% 7.3%
Expecfed Life of Oplions (in years) 8 7 8 ]
Expected Volafllily 48.7% 48.3% 47.9% 47 6%
Expucied Dividend Yield of the Qplions 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
:ri::rr:sl;dce (Fair Value of underlying equity a73.1 373.1 3724 ' 373.1
Exercise Price 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Method Used to Delarmine Expected
Volatility

Expecled volatility Is estimated using the historical volatiity of the
Company during the period equivalent to tha expected life of the
Options from he grant date.

[This page has been lefi blank intentionally]
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Note 34 : Earning Per Share {EPS)

For the year ended Forthe period ended

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Basic/ Diluted Earning Per Shars
Profitf {Loss) allributable to Equity Shareholders {A) 1.664.62 748.04
Weighted average number of equily shares for Basic EPS (in Nos.) {B8) 284.56 191.74
Baslc & Diluted earnings per sharatin %) (face value T 10 per sharg) (A/B) 5.85 3.80
Note 35 : Related Party Disclosures
a) Name of the Related Parties and De.scriptfon of Relationshlp:
Helding Company Slerling Tools Limited
Key Managesial Personng! (KMP) Mr, Atul Aggarwal - Director
Mr. Jaideep Wadhwa- Managing Dlrector
Mr. Anish Agarwal - Director
Mr. Rakesh Ealra Additional Director w.e.f 1 08. 2023
Mr. Pankaj Gupla- CFO
Mrs. Pragya Saxena- Company Secretary
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or thelr relatives Sterling Technologies Privale Limited
Stering Automobiles Private Limited
b} Transactions during the year with related party
Namme of Ralsted Party Nature of Transaction Realtionship Fm;’?:hvgf’r:&?d Fo;;;l::':{ g:'r;{:f;d
Share Capital issued * - 2,000.00
Unsecured loan Repald - 2,000.00
Sterling Tools Limited Interest on Loan Holding Company - 70.25
Sale of Goods 6.49 -
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 40.10 5.10
Mr Jaideep Wadhwa = Expense on employee stock eption schemes KMP 199.69 -
Mr Jaideep Wadhwa Expenses reimbursed kAP 25.08 21.04
Remuneration 122.92 15.67
Mr. Rakesh Batra Diractor Sifting Fees KMP 1.00 -
E‘:‘E{':g Technologles Private | oo v oaig sinz;r:;]?::t?; :ﬁ?ﬂ:&i& 60.88 46,20
by KMP or their relalives
ff;ﬁg‘g Automobile Privale  {n, opace of Fixed Assets :;::?ﬁrg::;: iﬁ:ﬁ::cgg 1.47 .
by KMP or their relatives

Nota* Undear the Employes Stock Option Plan 2023 {"ESCP 2023" or “ihe Plan"), share options of the helding companyl e.Sterling Tools Limited are

granted to a director of the Company.Refe Note 33A

c) Corporate Guarantes

The holding company Stetling Tools Limited has provided corporate guarantee 1o bank on behalf of the company for term foan and Cash Credit Hmit
sanclioned to the Company.

t} Year end balances of related parties

Name of Related Party As At As At

TN March 31,2024 | March 34, 203

" Amount Payable AR W

Sterling Tools Limited ““ S ) | - ] 6.48

1. 2 h
Araount Recelvahle Wer U AFN

o17| -

Mr. Jaideep Wadhwa \qi;;cw I
Sub Nota:

Ali the lransaction with the related parles are made on terms equivalent to hose that prevail In arm's length iransactions. Quistanding balances at the
year-end arg unsecured and interest free. No axpenses has baen recognized in the current year in respect of bad or doubifu} debtsfadvances and
further no specific provision for doubtful debls/advances has been made in respect of outstanding balances with relaled parties.
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Note 36 : Segment Infermation

Company {s in manufacturing of MCU (Motor Contro! Unit) and related componénts used in aulomoblie seclor. However, in line with the provision of
Ind AS 108- Operating Segments and on the basis of review of prospective operalions to done by the board of direclors of the Company (which has
been identified as the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who evaluates the company’s performance, allocates resources bas_ed on the analysis
of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unil). the operations of the Company falls under dealing in selling of MCU (Motlor
Contrat Unit}, which is considered to be the anly reportable segment.

Only one cuslomer represents 10% or more of the Company's total revenua for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Note 37 : Unhodged Forelgn Currency Exposure

a) Forelgn currency exposure not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise:-

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Foralgn currency exposure not hedged (Buy) Foreign “Amountin lakh| Foreigh Currency " Amotnt In fakh
Currency amf in lakh
_ amt In lakh
Amount Payable
CNY 20273 2.340.18 206,32 2,465.56
UsD - - - -
Amount Recelvable
CNY 0.00 0.02
Ush 0,01 0.80
GBP 0.01 0.63
HKD 0.01 0.06
JPY 0.15 0.08
Note 38 ; Ratios
Particulars Base 31st March 31st March 2023 % change|Explanation for
2024 change by more
{a) Cumrent Ralio Cutrent Assels/Current 1.62 1.57 3%| N/A
Liability
{b) Debt-Equity Ratio {Net Net DebY Shareholders' 0.34 0.30 14%] NFA
Debi/Tota! Equity) Equity
{c} Debt Service Coverage  |Eamings avallable for debl 8.93 1.29 -593%| Due 1o increase in
Ratle service / Debt Sendge loan
{d) Relum on Equity Ratio Net Profit afler tax/ Average 0.43 0.48 10%[ NIA
Net Worth
(2} inventory tumover ratio  |Cost of Goods Soldf Average 278 508 -45%] Due to increase in
Inventory operation
() Trade Recelvablas Net Credit Sale/ Average 15.20 16.92 -5%} NfA
lurnover ratio Accounts receivable
(g9} Trade payables tumover |Net Credit Purchase / Average 6.93 10.33 -33%| Due to increase in
ratio Trade Payables operation
() Nel caphtal lumover ratio |Net Sales/ Working Capital 8.15 6.98 17%| MNIA
{i} Net profit ratio Profit after tax/Total revenue 0.05 0.04 -20%|[ NFA
from operations .
(i) Retutn on Capilal Earnings before interest & 0.42 0.36 -19%| NIA
amployed tax/Capital employed
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Note 39 ; CSR Expenditure
The Company has spent ¥ 1.26 lakh {March 31, 2023 : ¥ Nil lakh) towards various schemes of Corporate Social Responsibility as prascribed under

section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details are as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

{i} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.26 -
(i.e. 2% of Average Nat profits of last three years)

{if) Amount spent during the year
1) Constructlon/acquisitions of any asset -
ii) For purposes other than {f) above -
d) Contritution to OM Foundation 1.28

(fii) Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year - -
{iv) Total of previous years shorfall{Excess) - -
{iv) Shortfall adjusted agalnst pervious year excess spent - -
{v) Total of excess spent carried forward - -
{vi} The Company does not have any ongoing projects as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Note 40:-The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of infarmation and documents as fequired by the transfar pricing
legistation under Sactlons 92-82F of the Income-tax Act. 1951. Since the law requires the sxlslance of such Information and documentation (o be
centemporanecus in nature, the Company Is In the process of updating the documentation of the International and specified domestlc transactions
entered Into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and expecls such records to be in existence iatest by the dus date as required by
iaw. The management is of the opinion that #s internalional transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact
on the financial stalements, particularly on the amaunt of lax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Note 41 : No funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (eilher from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company 1o or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediasies”) with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or
othervlse, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party Identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimale Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any parly (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entity Identified by or on behalf of Ihe Company (*Ullimate Beneficlaries™} or pravide any guarantes, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarles.

Note 42: Company has used accounting soflware for mainlaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trall {edit log) facilily and
the same has been operated throughout the year for all transaclions recorded in the software and the audit trall feature has not been tampered with
and the audit irail has been preserved by the company as per the stalutery requirements for record retention.

Note 43: Other Statutory Infarmation
(a) The company did nol have any transactions with companies struck off under Seciion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 580
of Companies Act, 1856 neither in the current financial year nor in the previous financial year.

{b) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding under Prohibition of Benami Properly Transactions Act,
1988 and sules made thereunder has been initiated or pending against the company.

(¢} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Instilution or other lender.

{d) The Company has not lraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

{e) The Company has no any such transaction which is not recordad in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the {ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1981 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Acf, 1951.

Note 44 : In view of the management, the cumrent assels, loans and advances have a value on reallzation In the ordinary course of business al least
equal io the amoun! at which they are stated |n the balance sheet a5 at March 31, 2024,

Note 45 : Flgures have been rounded off to the nearest ¥ lakh except otherwise stated.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sterling Gtake E-Mobilily Limited

Al Lﬂ"r\,ﬂ [ —

(Anish Agarwal) (Jaideep Wadhwa)
Diractor Managing Director
p 7056465 DIN No 06410019

> {( JALe
Place of Signalure: New Delhi ' (Pankaj Gupta} (Pr gya Sax°ena)

Dated: o 3 HAY 2024 Chief Financlal Officer Company Secratary
t ICSI Membarship No.FS640




